Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (pre-1965)

1964

State of Utah v. Lloyd B. Hart : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF CASE

This is a criminal action. The defendant was convicted of Burglary in the Second Degree by use of his own statements and testimony of an admitted accomplice who was placed on probation upon a plea of guilty along with another accomplice who did not testify, though under subpoena and present.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The case was tried to a jury in the District Court of Salt Lake County. Judge Ray Van Cott, Jr. presided.

The defendant was convicted and appeals.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant seeks reversal of the judgment and dismissal of the information as a matter of law; or, that failing, a new trial.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Viewed in the light most favorable to the State, the defendant and two co-defendants had consumed a considerable amount of alcoholic beverage during the better part of the 27th day of January, 1963, after which time they discussed committing the burglary for which they were charged, the place being the Maurice Warshaw apartment on East Second South in Salt Lake City, Utah. (T. 36)

To put matters in a more pronounced light of ironic dismay, inter alia, all three *purchased* rubber gloves from a *Grand Central Market* to avoid detection of fingerprints in an effort to conceal their respective indentities in having been at the scene.

The Warshaws were not at home. No one was in attendance at the scene when all three defendants entered through an unlocked door, little realizing such had effected a signal by a burglar alarm system to a local detective agency.

Almost immediately, before anything had been disturbed, taken or even touched, it was evident they had been caught. As the arresting officers entered at about 8:15 p.m.; (T. 10) two co-defendants were discovered inside the apartment, just standing, helpless in their plight, and offering no resistance to their arrest. The defendant was not found at that time; but, instead, he was later discovered outside the apartment on a catwalk behind plants (T. 14). The only access to that area was through the apartment . . . or by help from Him, it would seem.

All three were arrested and taken to the Salt Lake City Jail, where they were booked for Burglary in the Second Degree at 9:30 p.m. (T. 20).

It was not until 11:00 o'clock a.m. the following day, 15 hours later, when the defendant admitted his part in the act to Salt Lake Police Officer Dave Bradford. (T. 27) All, before they were arraigned before a committing magistrate, otherwise properly advised of their respective constitutional rights or had a complaint signed against them. (T. 28, 29)

POINT I

(and only)

THE DEFENDANT WAS DENIED A FAIR AND IM-PARTIAL TRIAL BY JURY AS PROVIDED FOR IN ARTICLE 1. SECTION 12 OF THE UTAH CONSTITUTION AND WAS DENIED DUE PROCESS OF LAW AND EQUAL PROTECTION OF LAW IN VIOLATION OF THE RIGHTS OF THE DEFENDANT UNDER THE 4TH, 5TH AND 14TH AMENDMENTS OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION SINCE THE TRIAL JUDGE OVERRULED TIMELY OBJECTION BY DEFENDANT AND ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE ADMISSIONS AND CONFESSION OF DEFENDANT WHICH WERE OBTAINED FROM DEFENDANT DURING UNREASONABLE DELAY BETWEEN TIME OF ARREST AND ARRAIGNMENT BEFORE COMMITTING MAGISTRATE AS FURTHER GUARANTEED BY STATE STATUTE.

The United States Supreme Court has enforced its Rule 5(a) of Criminal Procedure in the federal courts by excluding confessions received during an unreasonable delay between time of arrest and arraignment before a committing magistrate where the accused can be properly advised of his constitutional rights, with particular attention being focused for the present instance toward rights against self incrimination. (McNabb v. United States, 318 U.S., 332; Mallory v. United States, D.C. Cir. F.2d; Miller v. United States, 1958, 357 U.S. 301, Seals v. United States, 1963, D.C. Cir. F.2d.)

However, thus far, Rule 5(a) has not been applied to States by constitutional due process of the 5th Amendment through the 14th Amendment of the United States Constitution. It is, nonetheless, the contention of the defendant that it should. And he so requests this state court of last resort to so rule.

It is fundamental law that before a confession can be admitted into evidence, it must be made *voluntarily*, as a matter of law and fact. (*State v. Crank*, 105 U. 332, 112 P. 2d 178, 170 A-L.R. 542.)

The state has the burden to prove that such was voluntary. (State v. Bonolo, Wyo., 207 P. 1065, Graham v. State. Okl., 184 P. 2d 984, Cervantes v. United States, 263 F. 2d 800, State v. Crank, 105 U. 332, 142 P. 2d 178, 170 A.L.R. 542.) Voluntariness cannot be presumed.

The latest federal decision pertaining to Rule 5(a) is the Seals case, supra, wherein it was held that 3-1/2 hours was an unreasonable delay between arrest and arraignment, and ½ hour was such in the Mallory case, supra.

Our state, by statute, in Title 76-28-51, U.C.A., 1953, makes it a *crime* for "every public officer or other person, having arrested any person upon a criminal charge, who willfully delays taking such person before a magistrate having jurisdiction to take his examination."

Procedurally, our state, by statute, in cross reference to the statute above, in Title 77-13-17, U.C.A., 1953, states that when an arrest is made without a warrant by a peace officer or private person, the person arrested without unnecessary delay, be taken to the nearest and most accessible magistrate in the county in which the arrest is made, and a complaint stating the charge against the person must be made before such magistrate..., and in Title 77-12-14, U.C.A., 1953, states that

"the defendant must in all cases be taken before the magistrate without unnecessary delay"

What constitutes unnecessary delay must be decided as a matter of law and fact from the circumstances of each particular case. (Mapp v. Ohio, 1961, 367 U.S. 643, Rabinowitz v. United States, 1950, 339 U.S. 56; Rios v. United States, 1960, 364 U.S. 253.)

Unless otherwise met by the burden of proof by the state, when the defendant contends a confession to have been involuntary (T. 23), the court as a matter of law should so find as contended and not permit into evidence a confession so obtained. Such is the instant case. With no proof to the contrary, 15 hours delay between arrest and arraignment is unnecessary, unreasonable and in violation of the 5th Amendment through the 14th Amendment of the United States Constitution.

The trial judge erred by impliedly finding as a matter of law the defendant's confession was voluntarily given when he admitted same into evidence over objection (T. 23) without proof by the state to the contrary.

Furthermore, by the same reasoning, with no proof to the contrary, 15 hours delay between arrest and arraingment is unnecessary and unreasonable because illegal (76-28-51, U.C.A., 1953) and in violation of the 4th Amendment through the 14th Amendment of the United States Constitution.

All illegally obtained evidence is inadmissible in both state and federal courts. (Mapp v. Ohio, 1961, 367 U.S. 643, et al.)

The concurring opinion of the Mapp case, as well as in Boyd v. United States, 1886, 116 U.S. 616, et al, it is reasoned that neither the 4th nor 5th Amendments should be divorced from the other so far as they are to be applied through the due process clause of the United States Constitution, wherein the view is taken that no distinction of noteworthy value can be made between words or tanglibles when both have been illegally obtained. Neither should be admitted into evidence. Both would be unconstitutionally obtained and should not be allowed to violate fundamental rights of an accused.

Such is the contention of the defendant, and he so requests this state court of last recort to so rule.

CONCLUSION

The defendant has been denied due process of law which is guaranteed by our State and Federal Constituitnos and Statutes. He has been deprived of a fair trial before an impartial jury. His conviction is not substantiated by the evidence. The trial and verdict constitute a miscarriage of justice and should be reversed.