Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (pre-1965)

1964

State of Utah v. Lloyd B. Hart : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF CASE

The appellant Lloyd B. Hart was tried and convicted on the crime of second degree burglary in violation of 76-9-3, U.C.A. 1953, and appeals from that conviction.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

After full jury trial in the Third Judicial District Court, the appellant was convicted of second degree burglary and sentenced to be committed to the State Prison.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The appellant submits the judgment should be affirmed.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The only issue raised by this appeal is the validity of the trial court's action in admitting the appellant's confession into evidence. The appellant was charged with second

degree burglary of the dwelling of Maurice D. Warshaw in the Wasatch Towers on the 27th day of January, 1963 (R-1). The facts relevant to the commission of the crime are set out in the appellant's brief. The following facts are relevant to the admission of the appellant's oral confession. The appellant was questioned on the morning of the 28th of January, 1963, after his arrest (R-43). The questioning was done by officer David P. Bradford of the Salt Lake City Police Detective Bureau (R-43). The appellant had been arrested on Sunday night the 27th of January and questioned on Monday morning (R-50, 51). A complaint had not yet been issued nor had appellant been taken before a magistrate (R-50). No issue of the voluntariness of the confession was raised (R-44). The court admitted the testimony of the officer as to the oral confession of appellant (R-44).

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ADMITTING THE APPELLANT'S ORAL CONFESSION INTO EVIDENCE.

The appellant contends that the trial court erred in admitting into evidence his oral confession. The basis of the appellant's contention is that the confession should have been excluded because appellant was not taken before a magistrate "without unnecessary delay," as contemplated by 77–13–17, U.C.A. 1953. It should be noted that appellant was arrested on Sunday night and questioned the next morning. Whether the delay was unnecessary or unconscionable is open to doubt. However, as appellant tacitly recognizes in his brief the matter is immaterial. The appellant relies upon $McNabb\ v.\ United\ States$, 318 U.S. 332 (1943) and $Mallory\ v.\ United\ States$, 354 U.S. 449 (1957)

to support his position. He acknowledges that the McNabb rule has not as yet been incorporated into the 14th Amendment provision relating to due process of law and applicable against the States, but appellant contends that the rule of McNabb should be so applied and contends that Mapp v. Ohio, 367 U.S. 643 (1961) supports his position. Obviously the appeal is without merit. In McNabb v. United States, supra, the court excluded a voluntary confession taken during a period of delay in between arrest and presentment. The court, however, did not indicate any constitutional basis for the ruling, but indicated that they were acting on the basis of their supervisory power over government officers. The court stated:

"Quite apart from the Constitution, therefore, we are constrained to hold that the evidence elicited from the petitioners in the circumstances disclosed here must be excluded. For in their treatment of the petitioners the arresting officers assumed functions which Congress has explicitly denied them."

In subsequent cases petitioners from State Court judgments have sought to have the Supreme Court vitiate their confessions by raising the McNabb rule to one of constitutional level. The Supreme Court has consistently refused and ruled that the delay attendant to taking an accused before a magistrate will not prohibit the use of a confession otherwise voluntary. Lyons v. Oklahoma, 322 U.S. 596 (1944); Stroble v. California, 343 U.S. 181 (1952); Brown v. Allen, 344 U.S. 443 (1953); Stein v. New York, 346 U.S. 156 (1953). In Anno. 1 L.Ed. 2d 1747 speaking of State Courts it is stated:

"A confession is not, as a matter of due process, inadmissible merely because of an undue delay, prior to the making of the confession, on the part of the police in taking the accused before a committing magistrate."

See also Anno. 19 A.L.R. 2d, 1332.

Nor does Mapp v. Ohio, supra, add any weight to anpellant's position since it was concerned with excluding evidence as the result of an illegal search. This is not the case here. The fact also that one Justice of the Supreme Court. Justice Black, may feel that the 4th Amendment is incorporated in the Fourteenth hardly bolsters appellant's position since the majority of the court has consistently refused to apply the 5th Amendment against the states in total. Hurtado v. California, 110 U.S. 516 (1884); Palko v. Connecticut, 302 U.S. 319 (1937); and in Ker v. California, 374 U.S. 23 (1963) the court made it clear that Mapp did not extend beyond the 4th Amendment. Indeed, there is no reason to consider the implications of such an argument as appellant raises, since the "due process" concept is expressed in the 14th Amendment. Consequently, the appellant's position is without merit.

In Osborn v. Harris, 115 Utah 204, 203 P.2d 917 (1949) this court recognized the limitations on the McNabb rule and that it did not apply to State matters. In Mares v. Hill, 118 Utah 484, 222 P.2d 811 (1951) the court rejected the McNabb rule noting:

"This case is distinguishable from McNabb v. United States, 318 U.S. 332, 63 S. Ct. 608, 87 L. Ed. 819. In that case the Federal Supreme Court was dealing with a federal rule of procedure and whether there had been prejudicial error in failing to bring the accused without unnecessary delay before a magistrate. On the question of whether error had been committed, this court is the court of last resort in this case and we have already determined that question against plaintiff. Here plaintiff must show more than mere error in the trial — he must show a lack of due process of law which is much more limited in its scope than error."

In State v. Braasch, 119 Utah 458, 229 P.2d 289 (1951) the court again rejected the McNabb rule quoting from Turner v. Pennsylvania, 338 U.S. 62 (1949):

"But 'the mere questioning of a suspect while in the custody of police officers is not prohibited either as a matter of common law or due process,' and 'the mere fact that a confession is made while the accused is in the custody of the police officers does not render it inadmissible.'

In State v. Gardner, 119 Utah 579, 230 P.2d 559 (1951) this court in a thoughtful opinion by Justice Wade not only rejected the rule of McNabb but the underlying principle as well. The court stated:

"The mere fact that the confession was made while defendant was being held in violation of Section 105–12–14, U.C.A. 1943, and not taken before a magistrate without unnecessary delay is not alone sufficient to render a voluntary confession inadmissible in evidence. This is contrary to the decisions of the Supreme Court of the United States under Rule 5 (a), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, * * *."

"Although the federal statute construed in the McNabb case has for many years been the law and is similar to the laws of long standing in most states, as far as we can find no prior case has excluded a voluntary confession because the accused had not been promptly taken before a magistrate at the time he confessed. We find no state court which has adopted such a rule and several have expressly rejected it."

"To exclude such evidence deprives the state of reliable evidence for the purpose, it is said, to check the practice of secret questioning of prisoners. But it is not unlawful for officers to question prisoners suspected of crime as long as no coercion, physical or psychological, is exerted and no unfair advantage is taken."

Consequently, there is no merit to appellant's position.

CONCLUSION

The appellant was duly and properly convicted. The only basis raised on appeal is contrary to law and reason. This court should affirm.